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January 22, 2016  Project No: 141-21811-00 

Mr. Asit Dey, P.Eng. 

Environmental Engineer 

MANITOBA CONSERVATION AND WATER STEWARDSHIP 

160-123 Main Street 

Winnipeg, MB   R3C 1A5 

Dear Mr. Dey: 

RE: R.M. OF MACDONALD - COMMUNITY OF SANFORD 

WASTEWATER STABILIZATION POND EXPANSION 

 ENVIRONMENT ACT PROPOSAL – FILE No: 1921.10 

Thank you for providing us with the comments received during the initial review period 

for the Environment Act Proposal (EAP) regarding the expansion of the R.M. of 

Macdonald - Community of Sanford Wastewater Stabilization Pond from the Technical 

Advisory Committee (TAC).  This letter intends to address and respond to the comments 

and requests for additional information following submission of the EAP.  Comments 

were received from the following branches and sections within Manitoba Conservation 

and Water Stewardship (CWS): Environmental Compliance and Enforcement Branch, 

and the Approvals Branch. 

1.   Request for Additional Information on the Petroleum-Impacted Soil from 
Manitoba Conservation and Water Stewardship – Environmental 
Compliance and Enforcement. 

A letter dated December 23, 2015 from Ms. Yvonne Hawryliuk, Environment Officer to 

Mr. Grant Baker, Manager of Public Works for the R.M. of Macdonald, summarized the 

information on the quality of the petroleum-impacted soils, which is located on the lands 

where the expanded lagoon cell will be conducted and concluded that further treatment, 

sampling and testing is required on these soils for PHC Fraction F2. This letter has been 

attached for your reference. 
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The R.M. of Macdonald will continue to treat the petroleum-impacted soils during the 

spring of 2016 and will sample and test the soils before the construction of the new 

lagoon cell. Once the additional treatment, sampling and testing of the soils are 

completed, the R.M. of Macdonald will submit the results to CWS. If the results indicate 

that these soils meet the applicable CCME guidelines the R.M. will reapply to utilize 

these soils as cover in the adjacent waste disposal grounds. The R.M. of Macdonald will 

continue to treat the soil until these soils meet the CCME guidelines. 

Ultimately, this should not impact the construction of the expanded lagoon, as there is a 

sufficient amount of time to continue to treat, sample and test the soils before 

construction of the expanded lagoon, which is expected to take place during the 

summer/fall of 2016. The upper 600 mm of soil within the soil treatment area will still be 

stripped prior to the construction of the new secondary cell. 

2.   Request for Additional Information from Manitoba Conservation and Water 
Stewardship – Approvals Branch 

A.   Decommissioning Plan for Existing Truck Dump Ramp 

The condition of the clay liner around and underneath the existing truck dump ramp is 

unknown at this time. From the review conducted by WSP during the spring of 2015, the 

dyke slope around the truck dump ramp is partially eroded and therefore the clay liner is 

potentially eroded as well. We propose the following actions to decommission the 

existing truck dump ramp and to satisfy the requirement of a 1 m clay liner. 

During the construction of the expanded lagoon, the existing primary cell will be lowered, 

exposing the area around the truck dump ramp. At that time, the truck dump ramp and 

all associated material will be removed and disposed and the existing clay liner will be 

reviewed to determine the depth of this liner. The partially eroded dyke slope will then be 

repaired to a 4H:1V slope utilizing the high-plasticity clay. 

The attached engineering drawings C02-ISS2 and C03-ISS2 have been updated with 

the location of the existing truck dump ramp, as well as the liner information for the 

existing primary and secondary cells. 

B.   Sludge Management Plan for the Existing Primary Cell 

The Sanford Lagoon has been in service for the past 35 years and has only received 

domestic wastewater over its lifespan. At the time when the EAP was submitted, there 

was no indication from the R.M. of Macdonald and from the site reviews done by WSP 

that there was a significant amount (greater than the dead storage depth of 0.3 m) of 

sludge build-up within the existing primary cell. Consequently, no sludge depth survey 

was conducted on the primary cell to calculate the amount of sludge within the cell. 

Without properly quantifying the amount of sludge in the cell, an appropriate sludge 

management plan cannot be enacted. Thus, we propose the following plan to identify 

and measure the sludge in the existing primary cell. 
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With the construction of a new secondary cell and the conversion of the existing 

secondary cell to a primary cell, this will allow the existing primary cell to be properly 

lowered and drained as much as possible. Once this cell has been drained, a proper 

sludge depth survey can take place to identify the depth and quantity of sludge. After the 

quantity and depth of sludge is identified, an appropriate sludge management plan can 

be enacted.  

If the quantity and depth of sludge is found to be significant (greater than 0.3 m depth), 

this cell can be removed from service, as the remaining two cells can easily 

accommodate the wastewater generation from the current population of Sanford. With 

this cell removed from service, it can be appropriately de-sludged. 

C.   Decommissioning Plan for the Existing Discharge Pipe and Gate 
Valve at the South End of the Existing Secondary Cell 

The existing south discharge pipe will be capped on both ends of the pipe and the valve 

will remain in a closed position. Drawings C02-ISS2 and C03-ISS2 have been updated 

accordingly. 

D.   Splash Pad Details 

Drawings C02-ISS2 and C03-ISS2 have been updated accordingly.  

E.   Thrust Block Details 

All new gate valves are supported by a 600 mm x 600 mm x 150 mm concrete block. 

Drawings C02-ISS2 and C03-ISS2 have been updated accordingly.  

F.   Installation of Inter-Cell Pipes 

The new inter-cell pipe connection will be installed similarly to any new pipe installation.  

A trench shall be excavated and the bottom of the excavation shall be maintained in a 

condition to permit the proper installation of the pipe. Once the piping and gate valve are 

installed to specification, clay bentonite is placed and compacted a minimum of 150 mm 

around the new piping where it passes through the 1 m clay liner, and the trench is 

backfilled with clay material and compacted in 150 mm lifts to 95% Standard Proctor dry 

density. Drawings C02-ISS2 and C03-ISS2 have been updated accordingly.  
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Best regards, 

WSP Canada Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 

Dana Bredin, P.Eng. 
Geotechincal / Civil Engineer 
 
cc: Mr.  Daryl Hrehirchuk – CAO, R.M. of Macdonald  

Mr. Grant Baker – Public Works, R.M. of Macdonald 
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